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Playing the Palace

tis the vear 1916 in the growing city of Flint. W.S. Butterficld, the Battle

Creek—based owner of the Bijou and Majestic Theatres in Flint along
with theaters in Battle Creck, Kalamazoo, Jackson, Ann Arbor, Lansing,
Saginaw and Bay City, announced plans for a third theater in Flint,

The Palace Theatre seated 1,450 people at the corner of Kearsley and
Harrnison Streets. The estmated cost of construction was between $75,000
to $80,000. The theater was equipped with a proper-sized stage so any
production could be staged and have a seventy-foor rigeing loft. It was
designed by Chicago archinect John Eberson to resemble a Roman garden
under an Italian sky with twinkhing stars. "T'his was an carly example of the
atmospheric theater that Eberson would perfect over the next few years. A
decade later, the form reached its zenith with the Capitol Theatre—which
Eberson designed-—two blocks south of the Palace along Harrison Street,

It opened on August 30, 1917, with a five-act bill of live vaudeville
entertainment. The dedication opening that mght played 1o two capacity
audiences totaling nearly five thousand patrons. Before the live acts, a six-
piece orchestra played six short musical numbers, and a flilmed travelogue
with scenes ol Norway was shown. The hrst live performers were the
bouncing ball novelty act of the Alexander Brothers and Evelyn. They were
followed by a singing duo who called themselves “A Couple of Nilties,” Foley
& (O'Neil. Then there was a musical comedy called 7 he Smart Shop starring Bl
W. Rowland and Lorin J. Howard with Harry Kessler, Josephine Taylor and
a chorus of six young women, They were [ollowed by comedian Al Shayne,
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pA ACE who called himsell “The Singing
Beauty.” The headhiners were a
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Chinese troupe, Long Tack Sam

& Company, consisting ol jugglers,
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the VOATS, notable

performers who appeared on the

Palace stage included Bons Karloll.
LLthel  Barrvmore, Helen  Haves

A7 grand opening ad in the Flowt fowrnal . . _ ' .
and Kay Irancis. When the movies

tor the Palace Theatve. Courtesy of the Flint
Pubiec Libray learned o alk o 1927, the Palace

contnued to otter hive vaudewille and
silent movies untl Mav 19290 After a one-night-only roadshow appearance
by noted stage actor, dramaust and producer Wilham Hodge on May 25,
1929, the theater was closed lor a summer ot refurbishing and retrofitting
to wire the theater for sound and oller talkies. Tt had its grand re-opemng
on September 8, 1929, and featured talking movies while contunumg 1o offer
vaudeville acts [rom the RKO circme The first talking movie shown at the
alace was The Soplomore, starring Eddie Qulan, Sallv O'Neil and Jeaneue
Lofl. There was also a Paramount newsreel and three live vaudeville acts:
Brivt Woad, who called himsell” “the boob and his harmomca,” the singing
and dancig group the Gills and Clemens Belling with his Jollv Family, a
]‘:ln'nln‘illl novelty act,

With the Great Depression e full force in 1931, 1the Palace closed
temporanly alter the inal shows on June 6, 1931, with the feature Garls
Demand Fxcitement, starving John Wayne, Virginia Chernill and Marguerite
Churchilly preceded by selected shorts, T veopened on February 15, 1934,
with Car's Paw starring Harold Llovd preceded by such shorts as a Bety
Boop cartoon, a Terrvtoon, a comedy short and a Fox Movietone newsreel.

While vaudeville faded away, the live acts continued at the Palace into
the 19505 including the popular Cowbov Jamboree. But the ornate theater
had started 1o look old-fashioned by 1950, so in May, construction began 1o
renovate the Palace iside and out, Alter the last showine of The Good Humos
Man starring Jack Carson om July 4, the theater was closed for a couple of
months to complete the venovations.
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The renovated theater reopened on September 7, 1950, with a special
show featuring five local live acts, echoing the theater’s stored history of
offering vaudeville, with toe-tapper Rosemary Peck, accordion players
Stephen All and Joyee Swanson, teenage singers the Three Chicks, tap
dancers the McLaughlin Sisters and barbershop singing quartet the
Antlers. The feature lilm was Tea for Two, starring Doris Day and Gordon
MacRae, The renovated theater itsell was the real star ol the show. The
noted architectural firm of C. Howard Crane and Associates, which
designed many landmark theaters over the years, such as the Fox Theatre
in Detroit, removed all traces of the theater’s original design to make way
for the new art deco motif, Outside, the mansard roof was removed, and
the front was fimished off with colortul red and vellow porcelam enamel
tiles. Three thousand hght bulbs hit up the new all-glass-front marquee
and thirty-foor vertcal sign. 'The theater 1s prominent on this book’s back
cover, Inside. the outer lobby was enlarged by removing a storefront to
make way lor a new refreshment stand. The foyver was enlarged by removing
an expendable stairway and finished in walnut. The auditorium lost all of
its ornamentation as well as the side boxes and gaimmed modern recessed
hehting with decoratuons by two local Flint men, Ray Wrnght and arusi
Elmer Peterson, who provided the attractive murals. Capacity was reduced
to 1,350 seats, and several hundred latecomers had to be turned away:

In the 19705, the Palace began 1o show more films catering to Flint's
African American commumity, such as the pioneering 1971 film that began
the decade’s black cinema genre, Melvin Van Peebles’s Sweet Sweetback’s
Baadasssss Song, which plaved at the Palace. The surprising success of Swoeet
Siceetback led the Hollvwood studios to begin producing films catering to
black audiences 1o try and duplicate that film’s success, and it started a eyvele
ol kung hu and black exploitation films plaving at the Palace.

But with the development of the University of Nhchigan- Flint downtown
campus, condemmation proceedings began on July 1975 by the Flint City
Council due to the theater's complicated ownership. The theater closed with
the double bill of the 1973 film The Mack starring Richard Pryvor and the
Y74 ilm Foxy Browen starving Pam Grier, with Foxy Browon the final film shown
on Sunday. January 25, 1976,

When the citv bought the theater and turned it over wo the umversity, there
were calls lor the university 1o utilize the theater as part of the campus. 1t was
determined that it would cost at least $900,000 10 renovate the Palace and
bring the sixtv-year-old theater up 1o code. Besides, they did not anticipate
a need for an assembly hall as large as the Palace. When the demolition

| (K
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company stripped the theater of salvageable matenal. it was discovered
that the metal box from the cornerstone—which was removed just before
renovations began m 1950 and stored n the theater’s stage—was missing,
[t was belhieved that the newsreel in the box, which was hilmed on unstable
mtrate film, was unlikely to survive,

Demoliton of the Palace Theatre began on February 11, 1977, Alter
demolition was completed, the site was landscaped. Today, at the corner of
Kearsley and Harrison is a University ol Michigan- Flint sign as well as a
diagonal sidewalk.
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